
WDBVC Meeting 02.27.20 Page 1 of 4

WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT BOARD OF VENTURA COUNTY

Thursday, February 27, 2020
8:00 a.m. – 10:00 a.m.

Ventura County Office of Education (VCOE) Salon C
5100 Adolfo Road,

Camarillo, CA 93036

AGENDA

8:00 a.m.

8:15 a.m.

Check-in and Networking Opportunity

1.0 Call to Order, Introductions and Agenda Review Tracy Perez

8:18 a.m. 2.0 Public Comments

Procedure: The public is welcome to comment. All comments not related to items on the
agenda may be made at the beginning of the meeting only.

Tracy Perez

8:20 a.m. 3.0 WDB Member Recognition and Appreciation

 Jesus Torres
 Cindy Guenette

Tracy Perez

8:25 a.m. 4.0 WDB Chair Comments

 National Association of Workforce Boards – NAWB Forum March
21-24

Tracy Perez

8:30 a.m. 5.0 Financial Report Update

Financial Status Report Update – Presented by Rebecca Evans

Rebecca Evans

8:40 a.m. 6.0 Consent Items

Approve Workforce Development Board Minutes: December 12, 2019

Tracy Perez

8:45 a.m. 7.0 Action Items

7.1 Recommendation that the Workforce Development Board of
Ventura County Approve the re-appointment of the following
individuals to the Workforce Development Board:

• Tony Skinner
• Victor Dollar
• Dona Lacayo

Tracy Perez



For information about the Workforce Development Board of Ventura County, go to www.workforceventuracounty.org

WDBVC Meeting 2.27.2020 Page 2 of 4

7.2 Recommendation that the Workforce Development Board of
Ventura County approve the modification of two contracts to provide
Comprehensive Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act (WIOA)
Youth Services to Boys & Girls Clubs of Greater Oxnard & Port
Hueneme and PathPoint, including a one-year extension to the
contract term and addition of $535,000 to add one year to the
contract amount.

7.3 Recommendation that the Executive Committee recommend to the
Workforce Development Board of Ventura County approval of the
attached WDB Policies for WIOA Adult, Dislocated Worker, and
Youth Programs:

 WDB Policy #2019-05 – Nondiscrimination and Equal
Opportunity

 WDB Policy #2019-09 – WIOA Grievance and Complaint
Resolution

 WDB Policy #2019-14 – Incident Reporting
 WDB Policy #2019-15 – Career Services
 WDB Policy #2019-16 – Nonperformance Policy
 WDB Policy #2019-17 – Conflict of Interest

9:00 a.m. 8.0 2nd Quarter Performance Rebecca Evans –
Norman Albances

9:10 a.m. 9.0 Presentation – Ventura County Labor Market Information Update
by the Employment Development Department

Andriy Moskalyk

9:20 a.m. 10.0 WDB Committee Updates Committee
Members and Staff

9:40 a.m. 11.0 WDB Administration

11.1 Review of WDB committee structure and committee goals as
aligned with WDB priority goals

11.2 Review of Regional Plan Implementation Grant and alignment with
WDB priority goal for Work-Based Learning

11.3 Equal Opportunity Monitoring update

11.4 One-Stop Operator Request for Proposals (RFP)

11.5 Form 700 Reminder

11.6 CWA Youth Conference Takeaways
WDB Administration Manager Andrea Sanchez to provide
takeaways from conference January 14 – 16, 2020 at San Jose, CA

Rebecca Evans

9:50 a.m. 12.0 WDB Member Comments Committee
Members



For information about the Workforce Development Board of Ventura County, go to www.workforceventuracounty.org

WDBVC Meeting 2.27.2020 Page 3 of 4

10:00 a.m. 13.0 Adjournment

Next WDB Meeting (New Location)
April 23, 2020 (8:00 a.m. - 10:00 a.m.)
Ventura County Office of Education (VCOE) Salon C
5100 Adolfo Road,
Camarillo, CA 93036

NAWB Forum 2020
March 21 – 24, 2020
Washington, D.C.

Tracy Perez



For information about the Workforce Development Board of Ventura County, go to www.workforceventuracounty.org

WDBVC Meeting 2.27.2020 Page 4 of 4

SHARED VISION

The Ventura County region has a high quality, appropriately skilled workforce that is

ready and able to support the evolving business needs of employers in a dynamic,

competitive, global economic environment.

MISSION

The WDBVC builds and nurtures strong local partnerships and collaborates to

design a workforce system that creates upward mobility opportunities for individuals

in order to meet and anticipate the needs of employers while advancing the local

economy.

CORE VALUES

 Collaboration

 Accountability

 Innovation

 Responsiveness to the needs of individuals and businesses

 Diversity and Inclusion

Individuals who require accommodations for their disabilities (including interpreters and alternate formats) are requested to contact the

Workforce Development Board of Ventura County staff at (805) 477-5306 at least five days prior to the meeting. TTY line: 1-800-735-2922.



















 

WDB Meeting 12.12.19  Page 1 of 7 

 
WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT BOARD OF VENTURA COUNTY 

 
MEETING MINUTES 

 
Thursday, December 12, 2019 

8:00 a.m. to 10:00 a.m. 

Human Services Agency (HSA) 
Peppertree Room, 2nd Floor 

855 Partridge Drive  
Ventura, CA 93003 

 

 
WDB Members Present 
 

Tracy Perez, WDB Chair Kathy Harner Patty Schulz 

Peter Zierhut, WDB Vice Chair Victoria Jump Tony Skinner 

Jesse Cuevas Laura Martinez Jesus Torres 

Victor Dollar Anthony Mireles Carolyn Vang-Walker 

Cindy Guenette Bill Pratt Stephen Yeoh 

Vic Anselmo Dona Toteva Lacayo  

WDB Members Absent 
 

Greg Barnes Marilyn Jansen Alex Rivera 

Brian Gabler Celina Zacarias Rosa Serrato 

Greg Gillespie Captain Kirk Lagerquist, USN Bruce Stenslie 

Jeremy Goldberg Gregory Liu  

WDB Administration Staff 
 

Rebecca Evans, Executive Director Andrea Sanchez Patricia Duffy 

Patrick Newburn Norman Albances Kelly Hardy  

 
Guests 
 

David El Fattal VCCCD  

Shaffiq Rahim  High Tech Corp.  

Andriy Moskalyk EDD 

Marybeth Jacobsen  Workforce Education Coalition 

 
 

1.0 CALL TO ORDER AND AGENDA REVIEW 
 
WDB Chair Tracy Perez called the meeting to order at 8:15 a.m.  No changes were made to the agenda. 

 
2.0 PUBLIC COMMENTS – None 



WDB Meeting 12.12.19  Page 2 of 7 

 

3.0 WDB CHAIR COMMENTS 
 

WDB Chair Tracy Perez welcomed and thanked members of the board that could make it today and 

welcomed guest Shaffiq Rahim, new owner of High Tech Corp.  Chair also notified board members of WDB 

Administration Manager Patrick Newburn’s upcoming retirement on January 9, 2020 and thanked Patrick 

for his years of dedication and support to the WDB.  

4.0 FINANCIAL REPORT 

Rebecca Evans, WDB Executive Director presented the Financial Status Report for Fiscal Year 2019-2020 to 
include Year-to-Date Expenditures for July 01, 2019 through September 30, 2019 previously presented at 
the November 14, 2019 WDB Executive Committee meeting.  Note, for the detailed Financial Report, please 
refer to the meeting packet available on the WDB website at: www.workforceventuracounty.org.   

Executive Director highlighted one small change to the document from the WDBVC October 24, 2019 

meeting date was the Expenditures and Salary Goals Achieved category.  A change in funds amount for 

Management Reserves included any funds granted that would not be spent this fiscal year for 18-month 

grants.  Due to the grant ending and funds from those grants not entirely used, they are now fully 

expended.  Reference line 73, titled Work in Progress: Grant Balances; Grant - Workforce Accelerator 6.0 

shows where grants have ended, but were not spent.  Amounts are moved from reserve down to the 

category of Unspent Through 9/30/2019.    
 

5.0 CONSENT ITEMS  
 
5.1 Approve Workforce Development Board Minutes: October 24, 2019 

 
5.2 Approve the addition or deletion of providers and/or programs (Courses) for the Eligible Training 

Provider List (ETPL). 
 

Executive Director opened discussion for the approval of the addition or deletion of providers and/or 

programs (courses) for eligible training providers to members of the board.  Attached documents 

referenced in the meeting packet include a list of recommended modifications to the Eligible Training 

Provider List (ETPL) for Simi Institute of Careers and Education.  

 
Motion to approve the Consent Items:  Victor Dollar 
Second:  Jesus Torres 
Motion carried unanimously 
 

 
6.0 ACTION ITEMS  
 

Chair presented Action Items.  
 
The board considered background information, asked questions, and discussed the following items before 

taking-action.  Note: The meeting packet with background information for each action item is available on 

the WDB website at:  www.workforceventuracounty.org. 

 
 

http://www.workforceventuracounty.org/
http://www.workforceventuracounty.org/


WDB Meeting 12.12.19  Page 3 of 7 

6.1 RECOMMENDATION THAT THE WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT BOARD OF VENTURA COUNTY (WDB) 
RATIFY THE APPLICATION FOR FUNDING THROUGH THE RPI/SLINGSHOT 3.0 GRANT APPROVED BY 
THE WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT BOARD OF VENTURA COUNTY EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE ON 
NOVEMBER 14, 2019.  

Executive Director presented RPI/Slingshot 3.0 Grant detailing prospects to expanding opportunities 

in Earn and Learn Enrichment, increasing our labor market, and expanding partnerships within our 

community.  

Motion to approve: Anthony Mireles 
Second:  Cindy Guenette 
Motion carried. 
 
 

6.2 RECOMMENDATION THAT THE WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT BOARD OF VENTURA COUNTY (WDB) 

APPROVE THE ATTACHED WDB POLICIES FOR WIOA ADULT, DISLOCATED WORKER, AND YOUTH 
PROGRAMS:  

• Policy #2019-02 Debt Collection  
• Policy #2019-04 Definition of Basic Skills Deficient  
• Policy #2019-07 Priority of Service (This policy supersedes Local Policy Bulletin #2018-01 Veteran 

and Adult Priority of Service, dated August 23, 2018)  

• Policy #2019-10 WIOA Youth Program Requirements (This policy supersedes LOCAL POLICY 
BULLETIN #2016-01: Policy on Youth Work Experience and Expenditure Requirements dated July 1, 
2015 and LOCAL POLICY BULLETIN #2018-09 Incentives for WIOA Youth Programs dated August 
23, 2018). 
 
Executive Director provided information on Workforce Development policies for WIOA Adult, 
Dislocated Worker and Youth Programs and thanked WDB Administrative Managers for their 
contribution and efforts in drafting these policies, and advised that these policies are required by 
the state and define where we are at, at a local level. 
 
WDB Manager noted that the Debt Collection Policy mirror’s state policy per the state’s 

recommendation for a local policy during the WDB October 2019 state audit. 

In addition, a local policy was drafted for the definition of Basic Skills Deficient, as necessary to define 

at the county level, per State recommendations. 

Priority of Service policy focuses on Veterans and eligible Veteran’s spouses in our county as a 

priority population.  Members discussed requirements for qualification of this program.   

WIOA Youth Program defines criteria for youth to be eligible for our programs and mirrors the 
state policy.  

 
Motion to approve:  Tony Skinner 

Second:  Vic Anselmo 

Motion carried. 

 



WDB Meeting 12.12.19  Page 4 of 7 

6.3 RECOMMENDATION THAT THE WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT BOARD OF VENTURA COUNTY (WDB) 
APPROVE THE APPLICATION FOR FUNDING THROUGH THE WORKFORCE ACCELERATOR FUND 8.0 
GRANT   

Executive Director outlined details of the Workforce Accelerator Fund 8.0 Grant and advised that 
we have received a grant for 150k available over an 18-month PY, requiring a 1/1 match.  The 

grant focuses on providing services to those that have experienced homelessness. 

WDBVC is considering models throughout the country for developing improved processes to 
better assess housing and income needs within Ventura County.  One model in consideration 
is ‘Income Now’ based out of Houston, Texas.  Income Now connects those currently 
experiencing homelessness with income to secure and maintain permanent housing. 

This model addresses needs to better support staff, and best practices of improving internal 
communications for Social Services and Employment Service workers to provide a seamless access 
of services to clients that are experiencing homelessness, joblessness, and are at risk of being 
evicted. 

Member asked what can be done to better serve elderly individuals in these situations?  Member 
feels that a barrier exists to reaching individuals at risk, and that we do not have enough field 
outreach services.  Executive Director noted that there are difficulties to help those that cannot 
access resources, however there are Social Workers and Outreach Workers that do go out into the 
community. 

Member asked how grant money would be allocated?  Executive Director advised that grant 
money would be spent utilizing funds working with organizations to put a model in place, to 
develop a plan to build a structure, connect with Social Services, and establish staff time for a 
planning grant with an implementation component. 

 

Motion to approve: Anthony Mireles 
Second: Bill Pratt 
Motion carried. 

 

6.4 RECOMMENDATION THAT THE WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT BOARD OF VENTURA COUNTY (WDB) 
APPROVE THE APPLICATION FOR FUNDING THROUGH THE SB1 HIGH ROAD CONSTRUCTION GRANT. 

Executive Director presented the SB1 Highroad Construction Grant Proposal to the board.  WDB 
member Tony Skinner gave oversight of the SB1 Highroad Construction Grant, highlighting areas where 
programs in Ventura County could benefit in partnership for regional HRCC pre-apprenticeship training 
programs to benefit California’s transportation systems and other infrastructure investments by jointly 
applying for this grant with Santa Barbara and San Luis Obispo Counties, per state requirements.   

Board members discussed possibilities of partnering apprenticeship programs with the Ojai Adult 
Education School to develop a pathway for increased skills-set industry trades training.  Member 
recommended that there be an emphasis on training for Dislocated Workers and Out of School Youth.  
Executive director advised that WDBVC would most likely be the lead in applying for this grant to 
include all 3 counties. 

Motion to approve: Tony Skinner 
Second: Steve Yeoh 
Motion carried. 



WDB Meeting 12.12.19  Page 5 of 7 

 

7.0 PRESENTATION 

 

STRATEGIC PLANNING SESSION 
2019-2022 

Goals and Objectives  
of the 

Workforce Development Board 
Ventura County  

 
Prepared by CauseIMPACTS - October 2019 

 
Executive Director presented highlights of the Strategic Planning Session Goals and Objectives of the 
Workforce Development Board of Ventura County 2019-2022 from data gathered at the WDBVC 
meeting held on October 24, 2019. 
 

Final Plan: focus on future goals -  
I. Priority of Goals - How we want to organize ourselves as a board moving forward 

II. Establishing our Vision – Recommitment to Regional Partners  
III. Regional Statistics – More Data Driven  
IV. Challenges – How we get along as a regional county and how our training of workers matches 

the needs of employers  
V. Strengths - 

• History of WDB to be innovative and engaging in dialogue 

• Have four priority industry sectors 

• Industry Led Objectives 

• Number of Integrating Programs and Services 

• Expand Earn and Learn Opportunities/Apprenticeships 
 

Shared Vision Defined –  
• Vision -  What do we want to see? 

• Mission – How we are going to get there.  2017-2020 commitments  

• Smart Goals – Performance of Adult and Youth Services in line with our spending 
 

Priority of Goals - 
Goal #1 – Create a Performance Dashboard 
Goal #2 – Develop Work Based Learning Strategy 
Goal #3 – Align Career Technical Education (CTE): Does education meet employers needs 
Goal #4 – Analyze WDBVC board governance and legal structures – Creating an ad-hoc 
committee to review and implement structure. 

 
Member suggested that Goal #3 - Career Technical Information Education (CTE’s) are missing in certain 
Healthcare Industry areas.  Member notes that there is not enough training to accommodate needs of 
the community in Whole Home Care Services to meet increasing demands of a growing aging population.   
 
Member proposed that older adults and individuals with disabilities do not have enough opportunities 
offered to expand skills.  Executive Director advised that Career Pathways would be an area to enhance 



WDB Meeting 12.12.19  Page 6 of 7 

language referencing older adults and those with disabilities.  Also, WDB will be connecting with the 
Area Agency on Aging for further discussions.  

 
Organizational Structure –  
Executive Director conversed about the current organizational structure of the WDB with board 
members and requested feedback in ways that the WDB could become more productive and proficient.  
Members reviewed present committee’s structure and considered any redundancies.  Vice Chair 
suggested consideration in combining committees to reduce the number of meetings.  Member 
suggested combining Membership Committee with the Finance Committee.  Executive Director and 
board members reviewed the existing committees and their roles.  Members agreed that most 
committees discussed unique and separate roles.  
 
Executive Director reviewed 4 Priority Sectors, strengths with board members and requested 
feedback on combining the following Committee’s roles.  

o Business Services and Outreach 
o Clean/Green 
o Healthcare  
o Manufacturing 

 
Members discussed status of the Manufacturing Roundtable, as it presently does not have a Chair 
person.  Vice Chair recommended Manufacturing Roundtable of Ventura County goal to develop 
training.  It was recommended to pursue further discussions on combining resources in this area.  
 
Member suggested that the Business Services Committee has struggled with identifying goals, and that 
it could serve as a connector to services that overlap with the Outreach Committee.  Member 
recommended that the Business Services Committee and the Outreach Committee could be combined.  
Chair-person agrees with this suggestion.  
 
Additional members noted that the Business Services Committee serves a unique role in studying 
occupations in demand, and that this was not covered within the other committees.   Member suggests 
that Business Services Committee and Outreach Committee perform very different roles. Member notes 
that the economy is changing significantly in Ventura County due to larger corporations such as the 
expanding Biotech Industry.  
 
Members reviewed the Clean/Green Committees role.  Member noted that energy efficiency topics cut 
across multiple sectors, and the increased need for discussions as the California Industry is requiring 
multiple increased regulations.  
 
Members reviewed the Healthcare Committee and noted that this is a committee could not be 
combined with another committee due to the extensive involvement of healthcare leaders through the 
community, and the increased demand for healthcare services.  

 
8.0   WDB COMMITTEE UPDATES  

• Membership Committee Update - 

WDB Member gave an update on Membership Committee status, advised that the board has 25 voting 
members/ 3 non-voting members.  Member advised that one new member will be coming on in 
December, creating a need for an additional member in the Business Services category by the end of 
December 2019.  

• Programs Committee Update –  



WDB Meeting 12.12.19  Page 7 of 7 

WDB Member noted there will be data presented in the January 2020 meeting regarding the Programs 
Committee role to provide oversite to performance indicators, and Youth RFP considering three 
proposals.  Recommendations to be made to the Executive Director in the January 2020 meeting.  

• Manufacturing Committee – Executive Director advised that the Committee requires a Chair 
representative.  Executive Director and WDB Chair requested members of the board to consider 
becoming Chair-person for the Manufacturing Committee.  

All Committees will meet and discuss their roles, responsibilities and goals going forward and any 
recommendations to changes in committee structure to better support the priority goals of the WDB. 

9.0 WDB ADMINISTRATION   

Grants Update –  

9.1 EO Monitoring - Executive Director discussed the Equal Employment Opportunity role of WDB Staff, 
and introduced WDB Administrative Manager Andrea Sanchez to lead the review of the EO Monitor 
visit in February 2020.  

9.2 P2E Grant – P2E project kick-off event on December 11, 2019 was a great success.  The State and 
County have awarded 710,000 with 200,000 to Goodwill Industries, and 100,000 awarded to Ventura 
Adult Services.  Grant goes to March 2022.  County probation and state parole services to include state 
funding.  

9.3 National Dislocated Worker Grant (NDWG) 

10.0   ADJOURNMENT 
 

Motion to adjourn regular meeting at 10:00 a.m.:  Tony Skinner 
Second:  Bill Pratt 
Motion carried by WDB Chair, Tracy Perez 

 

Next WDB Meeting (Note Location)  
February 27, 2020 (8:00 a.m. - 10:00 a.m.)  
Ventura County Office of Education (VCOE) Salon C  
5100 Adolfo Road, 
Camarillo, CA 93036 

 
Youth Conference –  
WDB Administration Manager Andrea Sanchez to attend.  
January 14 – 16, 2020 
San Jose, CA  
 
NAWB - Forum 2020 
March 21 – 24, 2020 
Washington, D.C.   
 















































































































































































































































































 
LOCAL POLICY BULLETIN #2019-14 

Effective Date:  
 

The Workforce Development Board of Ventura County is an equal opportunity employer/program. Auxiliary aids 
and services are available upon request to individuals with disabilities. 

 

 
 

INCIDENT REPORTING 
 
PURPOSE 
This policy provides the guidance and establishes the procedures for reporting allegations of 
fraud, program abuse, or criminal conduct involving grantees or other entities and subrecipients 
receiving federal funds (either directly or indirectly from the Employment Development 
Department [EDD] to the EDD Compliance Review Office [CRO] and the US Department of Labor's 
[DOL] Office of Inspector General [OIG]). 
 
SCOPE 
The Workforce Development Board of Ventura County (WDBVC) and its contractors and  
subrecipients. 
 
REFERENCES 

• Title 2 Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200: “Uniform Administrative Requirements, 
Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards;” (Uniform Guidance) Sections 
200.22, 200.23, 200.92, 200.93, 200.333, and 200.344 

• Title 20 CFR Sections 683.600 and 683.620 

• DOL Training Employment and Guidance Letter (TEGL) 2-12 (PDF), Employment and Training 
Administration (ETA) Grant Recipient Responsibilities for Reporting Instances of Suspected 
Fraud, Program Abuse and Criminal Conduct (July 12, 2012) 
 

POLICY  
Per Title 20 CFR Section 683.620, information and complaints involving criminal fraud, waste, 
abuse or other criminal activity must be reported immediately through DOL’s Incident Reporting 
System to the OIG with a copy simultaneously provided to the ETA. Complaints of a noncriminal 
nature (e.g., mismanagement and gross waste of funds) may be handled under the procedures 
set forth in Title 20 CFR Section 683.600 or may also be reported through DOL’s Incident 
Reporting System. 
 
When an individual has knowledge or suspicion of a violation of the WIOA or its regulations, the 
individual must take prompt and appropriate action. 
 
Definitions 
 
Complaint – allegations of criminal activity and serious misconduct accepted by the DOL as 
incidents, and allegations of fraud, waste, and abuse concerning federally-funded grants, 
contracts, programs and operations, and dangers to the public health and safety. The incident 



Incident Reporting                  

Page 2 of 6 

reporting system should not be used for resolving employee grievances, Equal Employment 
Opportunity complaints, labor disputes, or other personnel concerns. 
 
Contract – a legal instrument by which a non-federal entity purchases property or services 
needed to carry out the project or program under a federal award. The term as used in this part 
does not include a legal instrument, even if the non-federal entity considers it a contract, when 
the substance of the transaction meets the definition of a federal award or subaward. (Uniform 
Guidance Section 200.22) 
 
Contractor – an entity that receives a contract as defined in 200.22 Contract. (Uniform Guidance 
Section 200.23) 
 
Subaward – an award provided by a pass-through entity to a subrecipient for the subrecipient to 
carry out part of a federal award received by the pass-through entity. It does not include 
payments to a contractor or payments to an individual that is a beneficiary of a federal program. 
A subaward may be provided though any form of legal agreement, including an agreement that 
the pass-through entity considers a contract. (Uniform Guidance Section 200.92) 
 
Subrecipient – a non-federal entity that receives a subaward from a pass-through entity to carry 
out part of a federal program, but does not include an individual that is a beneficiary of such 
program. A subrecipient may also be a recipient of other federal awards directly from a federal 
awarding agency. (Uniform Guidance Section 200.93) 
 

General 
 

All subrecipients that receive WIOA funds must promptly report to the CRO all allegations of 
WIOA-related fraud, abuse, and other criminal activity. The CRO must immediately report the 
allegations through the DOL’s Incident Reporting System to the OIG with a copy simultaneously 
provided to the ETA. In addition to submitting allegations to the CRO, subrecipients may also 
report allegations directly to the OIG, if deemed appropriate. 
 
Each subrecipient shall establish appropriate internal procedures to prevent and detect fraud, 
abuse, and criminal activity. These procedures must include a reporting process to ensure that 
the CRO is notified immediately of any allegations of WIOA-related fraud, abuse, or criminal 
activity, including the process for reporting allegations to the OIG. Internal procedures must be 
in writing and include the designation of a person on the subrecipients' staff who will be 
responsible for such notifications. 
 
Subrecipients will establish, document, and implement procedures to immediately notify the 
funding entity of any suspected or proven fraud, abuse, or other criminal activity involving WIOA-
funded activities. Funding entities must provide written notification to subrecipients regarding 
their responsibilities to be alert for instances of fraud, abuse, and criminal activity committed by 
staff, contractors, or program participants and to report all such instances to the funding entity 
and the CRO immediately, including that the allegations may also be reported to the OIG. Proof 



Incident Reporting                  

Page 3 of 6 

of this notification must be maintained in the funding entity's files. Subrecipients detecting the 
presence or appearance of fraud, abuse, or other criminal activity must obtain sufficient 
information to provide a clear, concise report of each incident. Reports must include a statement 
of all facts, known at the time, as well as any known or estimated loss of WIOA funds resulting 
from the incident. It is important that an initial report is made to the CRO within one working day 
of the detection of the incident. The submission of an Incident Report should not be delayed, 
even if all facts are not readily available. Any facts subsequently developed by the subrecipient 
are to be forwarded in a supplemental incident report. 
 
The reporting procedures do not supersede the responsibility for subrecipients to safeguard 
WIOA funds by taking prompt and appropriate corrective action when any evidence of a violation 
of WIOA or its implementing regulations is found. A glossary of terms and definitions related to 
reportable issues is available in Attachment I. 
 
Reporting 
 
Within one workday of detection or discovery of information alleging fraud, abuse, or other 
criminal activity involving WIOA funds, the detecting entity shall prepare a written Incident 
Report (Attachment II). The report must be submitted on the Incident Report form, which can be 
found as Attachment C to TEGL 2-12 (PDF), or a similar document containing the requested 
information to the CRO through one of the following methods. 
 
CRO   Mail:   Employment Development Department 

Compliance Review Office  
    Compliance Resolution Unit 
    P.O. Box 826880, MIC 22 
    Sacramento, CA 94280-0001 
 
  Email:  PACBCROIncidentReports@edd.ca.gov 
 
OIG   The Incident Report may also be submitted to the OIG 
 
  Website:  www.oig.dol.gov/contact.htm 
  Telephone:  1-800-347-3756 
  Fax:   (202) 693-7035 
  Mail:   Department of Labor 

Office of Inspector General 
    Office of Investigations 
    200 Constitution Avenue, N.W., Room S-5514 
    Washington, D.C. 20210 
 
Allegations considered to be of an emergency nature may be reported by telephone to the 
Compliance Resolution Unit Supervisor at (916) 654-8354 and by calling the OIG Hotline at 1-800-
347-3756 and followed immediately thereafter by a written incident report. 

mailto:PACBCROIncidentReports@edd.ca.gov


Incident Reporting                  

Page 4 of 6 

 
The Workforce Services Branch will forward any Incident Report it receives to the CRO. The CRO 
will record any Incident Report it receives in the WIOA Incident Report System, report the 
incident directly to the OIG Complaints Analysis Office, and forward the Incident Report to the 
DOL ETA Region 6, within one working day of receipt. However, the CRO may need to contact the 
reporting entity for clarification or additional details prior to forwarding it to the OIG and ETA 
Region 6. Concurrent with its transmittal of the Incident Report to the ETA Region 6, the CRO will, 
when applicable, notify the reporting entity to take appropriate action to recover misspent funds, 
or to contain its financial liability. 
 
Upon receipt, ETA Region 6 will forward the Incident Report to the DOL Regional OIG, San 
Francisco. Subsequently, ETA Region 6 will advise the CRO of the action to be taken by the DOL 
Regional OIG. When the OIG receives an Incident Report, they will determine whether or not to 
investigate the incident. If the OIG decides not to investigate an Incident Report, the case is 
referred back to ETA for resolution. At this time the case is referred to the EDD by ETA Region 6 
for investigation. If the OIG decides to investigate the incident, ETA Region 6 will instruct the CRO 
to wait for the OIG’s results before commencing the state-level formal resolution. 
 
When the CRO commences the state-level resolution, it will request a fact-finding and resolution 
report from the appropriate next level of oversight depending on the nature of the allegations. 
The CRO may require EDD’s direct subrecipients to submit a fact-finding and local resolution 
report, or the fact-finding mission may be conducted by the EDD. The fact-finding may, in certain 
circumstances, rise to the level of a special monitoring review, an investigation, or an audit by 
the appropriate state entities or by independent third party auditors, as determined by the CRO. 
 
Whenever the entity reporting the allegation of an incident believes that immediate action to 
prevent further financial loss or other damage is necessary, or recovery of funds or property may 
be impeded if immediate action is not taken, the reporting entity has the responsibility to take 
any action it deems appropriate, including contacting the local law enforcement agency. Any 
immediate action taken or planned by the reporting entity must be reported to the CRO when 
the Incident Report is submitted. 
 
Allegations of fraud, abuse, or other criminal activity in WIOA-funded programs may originate 
from sources other than subrecipients. Such sources may include informants, independent 
auditors, or local law enforcement agencies. Whenever the EDD receives an allegation from such 
source, the CRO will prepare an Incident Report and submit it to the OIG Complaints Analysis 
Office and to ETA Region 6, in accordance with this Directive. In such a case, the CRO will, when 
appropriate, inform the subject subrecipient of the incident reported and advise the latter of the 
need to take certain action. 
 
During an investigation, based on a report of fraud or abuse, the DOL OIG investigators or 
auditors may contact a subrecipient regarding an incident of which the subrecipient was not 
previously aware. Upon learning of the incident from federal sources, the subrecipient should 
contact the CRO to determine whether the latter is aware of the incident. If the subrecipient is 



Incident Reporting                  

Page 5 of 6 

not aware of the allegations but the CRO is, then the CRO will, when appropriate, inform the 
subrecipient of the specific allegations contained in the Incident Report. 
 
Action will not be taken against any complainant for disclosing information concerning criminal 
or improper activities or making a valid complaint to proper authorities. Complainants may 
remain anonymous. If a complainant considers that his or her position will be compromised by 
reporting information via an Incident Report, he or she may send the report directly to the OIG. 
 
Post Close-Out Adjustments and Continuing Responsibilities 
 
Per Uniform Guidance Section 200.344, the closeout of a federal award does not affect any of 
the following: 
 

• The right of the federal awarding agency or pass-through entity to disallow costs and 
recover funds on the basis of a later audit or other review. The federal awarding agency 
or pass-through entity must make any cost disallowance determination and notify the 
non- federal entity within the record retention period. 
 

• The obligation of the non-federal entity to return any funds due as a result of later 
refunds, corrections, or other transactions including final indirect cost rate adjustments. 
 

Records Retention Requirements 
 
Per Uniform Guidance Section 200.333, financial records, supporting documents, statistical 
records, and all other non- federal entity records pertinent to a federal award must be retained 
for a period of three years from the date of submission of the final expenditure report or, for 
federal awards that are renewed quarterly or annually, from the date of the submission of the 
quarterly or annual financial report, respectively, as reported to the federal awarding agency or 
pass-through entity in the case of a subrecipient. Federal awarding agencies and pass-through 
entities must not impose any other record retention on requirements upon non-federal entities. 
The only exceptions are the following: 
 

• If any litigation, claim, or audit is started before the expiration of the 3-year period, the 
records must be retained until all litigation, claims, or audit findings involving the records 
have been resolved and final action taken. 

• When the non-federal entity is notified in writing by the federal awarding agency, 
cognizant agency for audit, oversight agency for audit, cognizant agency for indirect costs, 
or pass-through entity to extend the retention period. 

• Records for real property and equipment acquired with federal funds must be retained 
for 3 years after final disposition. 

 
Grantees or other entities and subrecipients receiving federal funds either directly or indirectly 
from the EDD are required to retain all records related to Incident Reports until all litigation, 



Incident Reporting                  

Page 6 of 6 

claims, or audit findings involving the records related to the Incident Report, have been resolved 
and final action taken. 
 
ACTION 
Bring this policy to the attention of all affected staff. 
 
INQUIRIES 
Inquiries regarding this policy can be addressed to the WDBVC at 805-477-5306. 
 
/S/ Rebecca Evans, Executive Director 
      Workforce Development Board of Ventura County 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 

Attachment I    - Glossary of Terms 
Attachment II   - Incident Report Form 

 



  ATTACHMENT 1 
 

Source: United States Department of Labor, Advisory: Training and Employment Guidance Letter 2-12, 
Attachment A 

GLOSSARY OF TERMS AND DEFINITIONS 
 
The definitions of employee/participant misconduct, fraud, misfeasance or malfeasance, gross 
mismanagement, and misapplication of funds included below were developed to provide 
guidance for the purpose of this Directive. These definitions are illustrative and are not 
intended to be either comprehensive or restrictive. 
 
Emergency – A situation involving imminent health or safety concerns, or the imminent loss of 
funds exceeding an amount much larger than $50,000 (e.g., $500,000). 
 
Employee/Participant Misconduct – Actions occurring during or outside work hours that reflect 
negatively on the Department or its mission including, but not limited to: conflict of interest or 
the appearance of conflict of interest involving outside employment, business and professional 
activities; the receipt or giving of gifts, fees, entertainment, and favors; misuse of federal 
property; and, misuse of official information and such other activities as might adversely affect 
the confidence of the public in the integrity of the government (See 29 CFR Part O; 5 CFR Parts 
2635 and 5201) as well as serious violations of federal and state laws. 
 
Fraud, Misfeasance, Nonfeasance or Malfeasance – Any alleged deliberate action which may 
be in violation of federal statutes and regulations. This category includes, but is not limited to, 
indications of bribery, forgery, extortion, embezzlement, theft of participant checks, kickbacks 
from participants or contractors, intentional payments to a contractor without the expectation 
of receiving services, payments to ghost enrollees, misuse of appropriated funds, and 
misrepresenting information in official reports. 
 
Gross Mismanagement – Actions or situations arising out of management ineptitude or 
oversight and leading to a major violation of the legislative process, regulations, or 
contract/grant provisions. Such actions or situations have the potential to severely hamper 
accomplishment of program goals, waste government resources, and jeopardize future support 
for a particular project. This category includes, but is not limited to, unauditable records, 
unsupported costs, highly inaccurate fiscal reports or program reports, payroll discrepancies, 
payroll deductions not paid to the Internal Revenue Service, and lack of good internal control 
procedures. 
 
Misapplication of Funds – Any alleged deliberate use of funds, assets or property not 
authorized or provided for by legislation or regulations, grants, or contracts. This category 
includes, but is not limited to, nepotism, political patronage, use of participants for political 
activity, ineligible enrollees, conflict of interest, failure to report income from federal funds, 
violation of contract/grant procedures, and the use of federal funds for other than specified 
purposes. An incident report should be filed when there appears to be an intent to misapply 
funds rather than merely for a case of minor mismanagement. 
 



 

 

U. S. DEPARTMENT OF LABOR 
MANUAL SERIES 

 
DLMS – 8 

 
AUDITS AND INVESTIGATIONS 

 
Chapter 700 - Allegations of Wrongdoing or Misconduct, Incident Reporting, and 

Whistleblower Protection 
 
 
 

ETA INSTRUCTIONS FOR OIG 1-156 INCIDENT REPORT (IR) 
 
1.  Using the Incident Report Form:  The OIG 1-156 Incident Report Form should be used for 
filing:             

(a)  Initial Incident Report:  Form OIG 1-156 is designed primarily as an initial report to 
inform the Employment and Training Administration’s (ETA) Office of Financial and 
Administrative Management (OFAM) and the Office of the Inspector General (OIG) that a 
violation or apparent violation has occurred.  It should also be used to inform OFAM and 
OIG of cases involving ETA employees, programs, and operations being investigated by or 
reported to other investigative agencies. 
 
(b)  Supplemental Incident Report:  Once the initial Form OIG 1-156 has been filed Form 
OIG 1-156 should be used:  

(1)  To provide supplemental information not available at the time of the 
original report. 

 (2)  If the matter cannot be resolved at the agency level and the case goes to 
litigation or arbitration at another level, supplemental reports will be 
submitted without awaiting results of adjudication or arbitration. 

 
(c) Final Incident Report:  Form OIG 1-156 should be used when: 
  (1)  An incident is resolved, or otherwise settled. 
 (2)  Adjudication and arbitration results are known and all requirements of 

such adjudication or arbitration have been completed. 
 
2.  Completing the Incident Report Form:   
The agency designation code requested in block 2 is assigned by the office preparing the form and 
should include the fiscal year in which the report is being submitted, the agency acronym, and a 
number to indicate the chronological sequence of the report (for example, 09-CHI-ETA-01 would 
show that the report was submitted in Fiscal Year (FY) 2009, by Chicago, ETA, and was the first 
report they submitted in FY 2009, and 09-OWI-ETA-02 would show that the report was submitted  
in FY 2009 by the Office of Workforce Investment (OWI), ETA/NO, and was the second report 
OWI submitted in FY 2009). 
 
Block 16 should be signed on all copies by the responsible official for the office unless the  
employee believes he/she should send the form directly to the OIG and OFAM. 
 
 
 
 

Attachment C 



 

 

Entries requiring additional space may be continued at the end of the synopsis entry in Block 14 or 
on a separate sheet(s) of bond paper.  Head each additional sheet “Continuation” and give the 
Agency Identification Code from Block 2. 
 
3.  Transmitting the Completed Incident Report Form:  
For IRs originating in a region or concerning a regional office (RO) program, the Regional 
Administrator/Regional Apprenticeship Director (RA/RD) should send the original signed OIG 1-
156 via a transmittal memorandum to the Special Agent-In Charge (SAC) of the OIG’s Regional 
Office of Labor Racketeering and Fraud Investigations within two days of discovery or receipt of  
the incident report and simultaneously forward copies to OFAM and the Office of Regional 
Management (ORM) or the Office of Apprenticeship (OA).  
 
For IRs originating in the national office (NO) or concerning an NO program, the originating    
office should send the original signed OIG 1-156 to OFAM within two days of discovery or receipt 
of the incident report and simultaneously forward copies to ORM or OA.  OFAM will send the 
original IR to the OIG within two working days of receipt. 
 
See Attachment E for SAC and other OIG addresses. 
 
Mail ETA NO copies to: 
 Office of Financial and Administrative Management 
 200 Constitution Avenue, N.W., Room N-4653 
 Washington, D.C.  20210 
 ATTENTION:  OGM 
  
 Office of Regional Management 
 200 Constitution Avenue, N.W., Room C-4517 
 Washington, D.C.  20210 
  or 
 Office of Apprenticeship 
 200 Constitution Avenue, N.W., Room N-5311 
 Washington, D.C.  20210 
   
Note:  If the report concerns Department of Labor staff, the copies for the ETA NO should be sent 
in a sealed envelope addressed to the Administrator of OFAM with a notation on the envelope “TO   
BE OPENED BY ADDRESSEE ONLY.” 
 



U.S. Department of Labor
Office of Inspector General

 

Incident Report

For Official Use Only (When filled in) 1.  Date of 2.  Agency designation code 3.  File Number
report (Yr.)  (Agency) (Report No.)      (For IG use)

4. Type of report

Initial Supplemental Final Other (Specify)

5. Type of incident

Conduct violation Criminal violation Program violation

6. Allegation against

DOL Employee Contractor Grantee  Other (Specify)

Given name and position of employee(s), contractor(s), grantee, etc.  List telephone number, OWCP or other Claim File Numbber, if applicable, and other
identifying data:

7. Location of incident (Give complete name(s) and addresses of organization(s) involved)

8. Date and time of incident/discovery

9. Source of complaint Public Contractor Grantee Program Audit
Participant

        Invesstigative Law Enforcement Agency (Specify)     

Other (Specify)

Give name and telephone number so additional information can be obtained.

10. Contacts with law enforcement agencies (Specify name(s) and agency contacted and results)

11.  Expected concern to DOL

Local Regional National Media interest Executive GAO/Congressional interest
interest

Other (Specify)

12. DOL Agency involved

SECY ESA ETA ILAB LMSA MSHA OASAM OIG

OSHA SOL ASP BLS NCEP WB OIPA

Other (Specify)

Amount of grant or contract (If known) $ Amount of subgrant of $
subcontract (If known)

13. Persons who can provide additional information (Include custodian of records) Local Address (Street, City, &
State) or organization, if
employed and telephone numberName Grade Position or Employment1

job title



1Enter one of these codes:

U - Unemployed G-Grantee C-Contractor D - DOL F-Other Federal Employee P - Program Participant or
claimant

(Complete page 2 of this form) DL 1-156
8/83

For Official Use Only (When filled in)

14.  Details of Incident (Describe the Incident)

If more room is needed attach additional sheets.

15.  Typed name and title of DOL employee 16. Signature of DOL employee

17.  Copies furnished to: 18.  Attachments: (List)



WDB Action Item 02.27.20   Page 1 of 1 

 
 
 

 
TO:  WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT BOARD OF VENTURA COUNTY 
 
FROM:  REBECCA EVANS, EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR  
 
DATE:  FEBRUARY 27, 2020 
 
SUBJECT: RECOMMENDATION THAT THE WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT BOARD OF VENTURA COUNTY 

APPROVE THE RE-APPOINTMENT OF THE FOLLOWING INDIVIDUALS TO THE WORKFORCE 
DEVELOPMENT BOARD: 
• TONY SKINNER  
• VICTOR DOLLAR 
• DONA LACAYO 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Recommendation that the Workforce Development Board of Ventura County approve the re-appointment of 
the following individuals to the Workforce Development Board: 

• Tony Skinner 

• Victor Dollar 

• Dona Lacayo 
 
DISCUSSION 
 
On February 4, 2020, the WDB Membership Committee discussed re-appointments of the following 
individuals. After the meeting, the WDB Membership Committee members contacted the individuals to 
confirm their interest in continuing their membership with the WDB. On February 13, 2020, the WDB Executive 
Committee received an update and discussed WDB membership. Membership on the WDB is contingent upon 
approval of the County of Ventura Board of Supervisors. 
 
If you have questions, please call me at (805) 477-5306. 
 



WDB Action Item 02.27.20   Page 1 of 1 

 
Tony Skinner Bio 
 
Category 
 

Workforce 

Employer 
 

Tri-Counties Building and Construction Trades Council 
 

Occupation/Title 
 

Business Representative 
 

Work Experience 
 

30-year member  
International Brotherhood of Electrical Workers (I.B.E.W.) 
Local Union 952 
 

Other  
 

• Trustee of the Joint Apprenticeship Training Committee for I.B.E.W., Local 
Union 952 

• President of the Board of Directors for ACE High School in Camarillo 

• Member of the Economic Development Collaborative of Ventura County  
 

Current WDB Role Chair, Programs Committee 
Member, Executive Committee 
 
 



WDB Action Item 02.27.20   Page 1 of 1 

Victor Dollar Bio 
 
Category 
 

Business 

Employer 
 

Brighton Hotel Management, Four Points by Sheraton 
Ventura, CA 
 

Occupation/Title 
 

Senior V/P Sales Brighton Management 

Work Experience 
 

• General Manager, John Q. Hammons Hotels & Resorts, Residence Inn, 
Springfield MO  

• Director of Sales and Marketing, JQH Hotels, Holiday Inn Select, Bakersfield, CA  

• Director of Sales and Marketing, Holiday Inn Ventura Beach Resort, Ventura, CA   

• General Manager, Inn at Grand Glaize, Osage Beach, MO  

• Director of Sales/Assistant General Manager, Marina Bay Resort, Osage Beach, 
MO   

• Self-employed Owner, Dollar Moving and Storage, Simi Valley, CA   
 

Education 
 

• B.A., Business Administration, Kennedy-Western University, Cheyenne WY 
 

Other  • Chair, Ventura County Lodging Association 

• Executive Board, Ventura Convention and Visitors’ Bureau  

• Board Member (Chair), Tri-County Lodging Association, Lake of the Ozarks, MO 

• Board Member, Lake of the Ozarks Golf Council 

• Board Member, Lee C. Fine Airport 

• Rotary International, Westlake Village 
 
 

Current WDB Role Past WDB Chair 2015-2016 
Member, Executive Committee 
Member, Clean-Green Sector Committee 
 
 



WDB Action Item 02.27.20   Page 1 of 1 

Dona Lacayo Bio 
 
Category 
 

Non-voting 

Employer 
 
 

The Port of Hueneme/Oxnard Harbor District, CA 

Occupation/Title 
 

Director of Business Development 

Work Experience 
 
 
 

• 15 years’ experience in Global Logistics & Transportation business 
development 

• Sales Executive: Hapag-LLoyd (America), Inc. - Long Beach, CA  

• Account Executive; Business Development Sales Representative: Horizon 
Lines, Inc. - Oakland and Long Beach, CA 

 
Education 
 

• Masters of Business Administration, Saint Mary's College of California 

• Bachelor of Science, International Business major , College of Charleston - 
Charleston, SC 

 
Other Experience • Oxnard Chamber of Commerce, Board of Directors 

• Port Hueneme Chamber of Commerce, Port Hueneme CA., Member 

• California Association of Port Authorities 

• American Association of Port Authorities 
 

 
Current WDB Role  Member, Manufacturing Committee 

Member, Business Services Committee 
 

  
 



 
 
 

 

 

TO: WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT BOARD 
 
FROM: REBECCA EVANS, WDB EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR 
  
 
DATE: FEBRUARY 27, 2020 
 
SUBJECT: RECOMMENDATION THAT THE WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT BOARD OF VENTURA 

COUNTY (WDB) RECOMMEND THAT THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS APPROVE THE 
MODIFICATION OF TWO CONTRACTS TO PROVIDE COMPREHENSIVE WORKFORCE 
INNOVATION AND OPPORTUNITY ACT (WIOA) YOUTH SERVICES TO EXTEND THE 
CONTRACT TERM FOR ONE YEAR AND ADD $535,000 TO THE CONTRACT VALUE.  

 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Recommendation that the Workforce Development Board of Ventura County (WDB) recommend that the Board 
of Supervisors approve the modification of two contracts to provide comprehensive Workforce Innovation and 
Opportunity Act (WIOA) Youth Services to Boys & Girls Clubs of Greater Oxnard & Port Hueneme and PathPoint, 
including a one-year extension to the contract term and addition of $535,000 supplement to the contract amount.   
 
BACKGROUND 
 
The WDB issued the comprehensive youth services Request for Proposals (RFP) on October 21, 2019. Three 
proposals were received and reviewed.  After carefully reviewing the reader scores, comments and ranking of 
the proposals, along with other relevant criteria (i.e., WIOA funding, direction, performance, and training), the 
proposals from PathPoint, Goodwill Industries of Ventura and Santa Barbara Counties, and Boys & Girls Clubs 
of Greater Oxnard & Port Hueneme we are currently unable to determine a clear choice of contractors for the 
provision of services. The Executive Committee approved the recommendation of the Programs Committee on 
Thursday February 13, 2020.  
 
 
 
DISCUSSION 
 
The two contracts originally approved by the Ventura County Board of Supervisors on June 20, 2017 specify the 
initial base performance period of the contract is from July 1, 2017 - June 30, 2018 and may be extended for two 
option years upon mutual agreement of the parties, subject to all terms and conditions listed therein and subject 
to the appropriation of funds by the Board of Supervisors. The contracts have since been extended for two 
options years.  Under the WIOA, Youth Services may be renewed every four years; therefore, this extension 
request would be in compliance within WIOA.  
 

1.  Base term:  July 1, 2017 - June 30, 2018 
2.  Option term 1:  July 1, 2018 - June 30, 2019 
3.  Option term 2:  July 1, 2019 - June 30, 2020 
4.  Modification Extension term: July 1,2020 - June 30, 2021 

 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
At the conclusion of the option term one, program year (PY) 2018-2019 and term two, PY 2019-2020, it is 
necessary to make a decision regarding renewal of each contract for an extension year (PY 2020-2021).  
 
On February 5, 2020, the WDB Programs Committee, serving as the WDB oversight committee for WIOA 
programs, discussed the cancellation of the current RFP and re-release in late 2020.   
 
Discussion involved carefully reviewing the provider’s enrollment statistics, Workforce Experience expenditure 
reports, WIOA Performance Indicator reports, and accountability and compliance monitoring reports from the 
Contracts Department of the Human Services Agency (HSA) and from the State of California’s Employment 
Development Department (EDD).  Additionally, the committee carefully considered previous summary reports 
which detailed the corrective action plans and results of all monitoring activity, case reviews, and technical 
assistance provided to both contractors. Following discussion and evaluation of the evidence provided, the 
committee unanimously concluded to cancel the current RFP and re-release a new RFP in late (possibly 
October) 2020.  Current contracts with current providers will be extended for one more year. Contracts from the 
new RFP should start July 1, 2021. 
  
Prior to the new RFP being released, WDB staff will conduct a stakeholder process with youth-serving 
organizations, stakeholders and subject matter experts for input on program design, review challenges, and build 
opportunities for collaboration among the community based organizations.  
  
Over the next year WDB Staff will also provide a series of trainings on program related topics and best practices 
particularly in a career-path approach to current contractors and any interested youth-serving 
organizations.  Those attending will learn more about WIOA and how to serve various youth populations in order 
to build their capacity and interest in applying for the new RFP. 
 
 
The Executive Committee recommends that the full Workforce Development Board recommend to the Board of 
Supervisors approval of a one-year extension (July 1, 2020 through June 30, 2021) for both providers and a 
contract increase of $535,000 each to fund the additional year of services.  If approved by the WDB will consider 
approval of the two contracts on February 27, 2020.  Subsequent to WDB approval, the county Board of 
Supervisors will consider the two contract modifications for approval prior to June 30, 2020. 
 
If you have questions or need more information, contact Rebecca Evans at (805) 477-5306, email 

rebecca.evans@ventura.org 

 

mailto:rebecca.evans@ventura.org


 
 
 
TO: WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT BOARD OF VENTURA COUNTY 
 

FROM:  REBECCA EVANS, WDB EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR 
 

DATE:  FEBRUARY 27, 2020 
 

SUBJECT: RECOMMENDATION THAT THE WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT BOARD OF VENTURA COUNTY 
(WDB) APPROVE THE ATTACHED WDB POLICIES WIOA PROGRAMS: 
 
1) WDB POLICY #2019-05 – NONDISCRIMINATION AND EQUAL OPPORTUNITY   
2) WDB POLICY #2019-09 – WIOA GRIEVANCE AND COMPLAINT RESOLUTION 
3) WDB POLICY #2019-14 – INCIDENT REPORTING 
4) WDB POLICY #2019-15 – CAREER SERVICES 
5) WDB POLICY #2019-16 – NONPERFORMANCE POLICY 
6) WDB POLICY #2019-17 – CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 

Recommendation that the Workforce Development Board of Ventura County (WDB) approve the attached WDB 
policies for WIOA Programs:  

 
1) WDB POLICY #2019-05 – NONDISCRIMINATION AND EQUAL OPPORTUNITY   
2) WDB POLICY #2019-09 – WIOA GRIEVANCE AND COMPLAINT RESOLUTION 
3) WDB POLICY #2019-14 – INCIDENT REPORTING 
4) WDB POLICY #2019-15 – CAREER SERVICES 
5) WDB POLICY #2019-16 – NONPERFORMANCE POLICY 
6) WDB POLICY #2019-17 – CONFLICT OF INTEREST 

 
BACKGROUND 
 
All WIOA Title-I Adult, Dislocated Worker, Rapid Response and Youth program operators in the American Job 
Center of California (AJCC) delivery system are required to meet applicable local, state, and federal requirements 
including negotiated local area performance goals and required state rapid response reporting for a successful 
and sustainable regional workforce system. WIOA Title-I programs for Adults, Dislocated Workers, and Rapid 
Response are managed by the Human Services Agency, Adult and Family Services Department (AFS); and Youth 
programs are managed by independent contracts with agencies outside County government. Levels of 
performance will be determined by the WDBVC on an annual basis. 
 
WDB policies are intended to support the local and regional strategic plans and ensure continuous improvement 
and alignment with mandated guidance from WIOA law, Federal Register - Code of Federal Regulation (CFR); 
Department of Labor - Training and Employment Guidance Letters (TEGL); and Employment Development 
Department Directives.  
 



 
 

 

WDB Action Item 2019-12-12  Page 2 of 2 

Presented for your review are new WDB policies (Policy #2019-05, Policy #2019-09, Policy #2019-14, and Policy 
#2019-15, #2019-16, #2019-17) that will comply with current DOL TEGL and EDD directives. WDB administration 
staff have prepared these policies and procedures in consultation with service providers and HSA staff. On 
February 5, 2020, the Programs Committee reviewed and recommended these policies to the Executive 
Committee for their approval. On February 13, 2020, the Executive Committee reviewed and recommended 
these policies to the WDB for their approval.    The policies are attached to this action item. 
 
If you have questions or need more information, contact Norman Albances at (805) 289-8128, email 
norman.albances@ventura.org.   
 

Attachments: 
1) WDB POLICY #2019-05 – NONDISCRIMINATION AND EQUAL OPPORTUNITY   
2) WDB POLICY #2019-09 – WIOA GRIEVANCE AND COMPLAINT RESOLUTION 
3) WDB POLICY #2019-14 – INCIDENT REPORTING 
4) WDB POLICY #2019-15 – CAREER SERVICES 
5) WDB POLICY #2019-16 – NONPERFORMANCE POLICY 
6) WDB POLICY #2019-17 – CONFLICT OF INTEREST 

mailto:norman.albances@ventura.org


PERFORMANCE DASHBOARD PY 2019-20 2ND QUARTER

FEBRUARY 2020 OCTOBER 1, 2019 - DECEMBER 31, 2019

Exceeds performance Upward trend since previous report

Meets performance Downward trend since previous report

Below performance No change since previous report

PROGRAM/GRANT TERM PERFORMANCE PLAN YTD ACTUAL YTD %

Dislocated Worker
07/01/19-

06/30/20
County of Ventura H.S.A. $1,736,122 $926,688 53%

07/01/19-

06/30/20
County of Ventura H.S.A. $1,579,611 $881,204 56%

PathPoint

Boys & Girls Club

County of Ventura H.S.A.

EDC

04/01/19-

09/30/20
County of Ventura H.S.A. $118,424 $47,994 41%

SPRA

EDC

06/01/19-

12/31/20
County of Ventura H.S.A. $281,376 $207 0%

02/01/18-

09/30/19
County of Ventura H.S.A. $64,840 $64,680 100%

01/01/18-

09/30/19
County of Ventura WDB $36,030 $35,165 98%

10/01/18-

03/31/20
causeIMPACTS $2,118 $0 0%

NDWG 2018 Temp Jobs
12/06/18-

12/31/20
Goodwill $330,463 $282,868 86%

12/06/18-

12/31/20
Goodwill $279,545 $2,977 1%

County of Ventura H.S.A.

VACE

Goodwill

Total $6,648,369 $3,212,554 48%

Source: CalJOBS and Subrecipient Reports

Project started

December

2019

The Workforce Development Board of Ventura County is an equal opportunity employer/program. Auxiliary

aids and services are available upon request to individuals with disabilities.

60%

Regional Plan

Implementation (closed)

Veterans Employment

Assistance Program

12/06/18-

12/31/20

Prison 2 Employment

Implementation

Prison 2 Employment

Planning

$257,359 $0 0%

$279,753 $161,024 58%

$168,204 $100,521

Rapid Response
07/01/19-

06/30/20

Slingshot 2.0
04/01/19-

09/30/20

NDWG 2018 Workforce

Development

Workforce Accel 6.0

(closed)

Reg Organizer/ Training

Coordinator

WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT BOARD OF

VENTURA COUNTY

07/01/19-

06/30/20

Adult

Youth 47%

PROVIDER

$1,514,523 $709,227



Annual

Report

Periods

WIOA Performance Indicators

Jul -

Sep

2017

Oct -

Dec

2017

Jan -

Mar

2018

Apr -

Jun

2018

Jul -

Sep

2018

Oct -

Dec

2018

Jan -

Mar

2019

Apr -

Jun

2019

Jul -

Sep

2019

Oct -

Dec

2019

Jan -

Mar

2020

Apr -

Jun

2020

Jul -

Sep

2020

Oct -

Dec

2020

Jan -

Mar

2021

Apr -

Jun

2021

Quarterly

Report

Periods

Measurable Skill Gains

Employment Rate 2nd Qtr after Exit

Median Earnings 2nd Qtr after Exit

Employment Rate 4th Qtr after Exit

Credential Attainment Rate

Effectiveness in Serving Employers

Total quarterly earnings, for all participants employed in the second quarter after exit, are collected by either direct wage record match or

supplemental wage information.
Median Earnings 2nd Quarter after Exit

Percentage of program participants who are in unsubsidized employment during the fourth quarter after exit from the program.Employment Rate 4th Quarter after Exit

Credential Attainment Rate

Percentage of those participants enrolled in an education or training program (excluding those in OJT and customized training) who attained a

recognized postsecondary credential or a secondary school diploma, or its recognized equivalent, during participation in or within one year

after exit from the program.

Definition

Measurable Skill Gains

Percentage of participants who, during a program year, are in an education or training program that leads to a recognized postsecondary

credential or employment and who are achieving documented academic, technical, occupational, or other forms of progress, towards such a

credential or employment

Employment Rate 2nd Quarter after Exit Percentage of program participants who are in unsubsidized employment during the second quarter after exit from the program.

PY 2019 WIOA Annual

Report ETA-9169 Due

October 2020

PY 2020 WIOA Annual

Report ETA-9169 Due

October 2021

Page 2

Periods of Performance Reporting Cohorts

Based on individuals served in the same Quarter/Program Year of the Report

Based on individuals exiting in Quarters/PY prior to reporting period, lagged to account for data availability and outcome timeframes

Each color (blue, orange, green and gold) represents the program year the different cohorts of individuals are reported, and each shade of those colors represents the quarter those

cohorts are reported. All of the boxes with the same color/shade represent cohorts that are reported in the reporting period with the corresponding color/shade.

The outcomes for these exiters'

reported in PY 21 reports

The outcomes for these exiters'

reported in PY 21 reports

The outcomes for

these exiters'

reported in PY 21

reports

PY 2017 WIOA Annual

Report ETA-9169 Due

October 2018

PY 2018 WIOA Annual

Report ETA-9169 Due

October 2019

Effectiveness in Serving Employers

Employer Retention: Percentage of participants with wage records who exit and were employed by the same employer in the second and

fourth quarters after exit.

Repeat Business Customer: Percentage of employers who have used WIOA core program services more than once during the last three

reporting periods

WIOA Performance Indicators



PERFORMANCE DASHBOARD PY 2019-20 2ND QUARTER

FEBRUARY 2020 OCTOBER 1, 2019 - DECEMBER 31, 2019

Source: CalJOBS and Subrecipient Reports

Adult

Youth

Dislocated Worker

Page 3

WDBVC WIOA PERFORMANCE OUTCOMES

0.0%

20.0%

40.0%

60.0%

80.0%

100.0%

Employment Rate
2nd Qtr After Exit

Employment Rate
4th Qtr After Exit

Credential
Attainment

Measurable Skills
Gain

Actual Goal

$0

$5,000

$10,000

$15,000

Median Earnings

Actual Goal

0.0%

20.0%

40.0%

60.0%

80.0%

100.0%

Employment Rate
2nd Qtr After Exit

Employment Rate
4th Qtr After Exit

Credential
Attainment

Measurable Skills
Gain

Actual Goal

$0

$2,000

$4,000

$6,000

$8,000

$10,000

Median Earnings

Actual Goal

0.0%

20.0%

40.0%

60.0%

80.0%

100.0%

120.0%

Employment Rate
2nd Qtr After Exit

Employment Rate
4th Qtr After Exit

Credential
Attainment

Measurable Skills
Gain

Actual Goal

$3,300

$3,400

$3,500

$3,600

$3,700

$3,800

Median Earnings

Actual Goal



PERFORMANCE DASHBOARD PY 2019-20 2ND QUARTER

FEBRUARY 2020 OCTOBER 1, 2019 - DECEMBER 31, 2019

Source: CalJOBS and Subrecipient Reports

Page 4

6,657 Visitors

574 Visitors

WDBVC AMERICA'S JOB CENTER OF CALIFORNIA

VISITS

Oxnard AJCC

Simi Valley AJCC Affiliate

I am here to see a specific staff member

2 - CalWORKs

8 - Employer Interview

9h - General Information

5 - Reemployment Services and Eligibility Assessment (RESEA)

1a - Resource Room

1b - Unemployment Insurance Assistance

9f - Veteran Services

9a- WIOA Orientation

7 - Workshop

6 - PrEP

3 - Outstanding Professional Experience Network (OPEN)

4 - PJSA

1aa - NAVFAC Recruitment

3 - Life Enrichment Seminar

0 500 1,000 1,500 2,000 2,500 3,000 3,500

1 - Resource Room

6 - Employer Interview

8 - General Information

4 - Specific Staff Member

2 - Unemployment Insurance Assistance

3 - WIOA Orientation

7 - Workshop

5 - PrEP

Disaster Relief Employment Assistance

9 - Disaster Relief Unemployment Compensation

Disaster Relief Housing Assistance

0 50 100 150 200 250 300 350 400 450 500



PERFORMANCE DASHBOARD PY 2019-20 2ND QUARTER

FEBRUARY 2020 OCTOBER 1, 2019 - DECEMBER 31, 2019

Service Provider/Contractor County of Ventura H.S.A.

Program/Grant Term 07/01/19-06/30/20

Amount Funded

Source: CalJOBS and Subrecipient Reports

WIOA DISLOCATED WORKER PROGRAM

Page 5

The WIOA dislocated worker program is designed to meet employer needs by helping job seekers upgrade skills,

obtain employment, obtain credentials and improve job retention and increase earnings. The program helps

dislocated workers become reemployed through job search assistance and/or training.

$1,736,122

Race/Ethnicity

33
Other Cities

44

48 106

Ventura Residents

11

Total Enrollees Carry-In New

33

New Enrollee Goal

121 73

Simi Valley Residents Oxnard Residents

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

Hispanic or Latino American Indian /
Alaskan Native

Asian African American /
Black

Hawaiian Native /
Other Pacific Islander

White

Total

Exceeds performance



PERFORMANCE DASHBOARD PY 2019-20 2ND QUARTER

FEBRUARY 2020 OCTOBER 1, 2019 - DECEMBER 31, 2019

Service Provider/Contractor County of Ventura H.S.A.

Program/Grant Term 07/01/19-06/30/20

Amount Funded

Source: CalJOBS and Subrecipient Reports

50

WIOA ADULT PROGRAM

The WIOA adult program provides career, education, and training services to individuals 18 years of age and

older. The program provides an emphasis on serving public assistance recipients, other low-income individuals,

and individuals who are low-skilled.

$1,579,611

New Enrollee Goal

182

Total Enrollees

151
Carry-In

101

New

Race/Ethnicity

Page 6

Simi Valley Residents Oxnard Residents Ventura Residents Other Cities

21 48 20 62

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

Hispanic or Latino American Indian /
Alaskan Native

Asian African American /
Black

Hawaiian Native /
Other Pacific Islander

White

Total

Exceeds performance



PERFORMANCE DASHBOARD PY 2019-20 2ND QUARTER

FEBRUARY 2020 OCTOBER 1, 2019 - DECEMBER 31, 2019

Service Provider/Contractor PathPoint

Program/Grant Term 07/01/19-06/30/20

Amount Funded

Source: CalJOBS and Subrecipient Reports

WIOA YOUTH PROGRAM

The WIOA youth program helps youth, between the ages of 14 and 24, acquire the educational and

occupational skills, training, and support needed to achieve academic and employment success and

successfully transition into careers and productive adulthood.

$535,000

Total Enrollees Carry-In New New Enrollee Goal

Page 7

111 40 71 90

Ventura Residents Santa Paula Residents Simi Valley Residents Other Cities

43 19 8 41

WIOA Performance Outcomes

0.0%

10.0%

20.0%

30.0%

40.0%

50.0%

60.0%

70.0%

80.0%

90.0%

Employment Rate
2nd Qtr After Exit

Employment Rate
4th Qtr After Exit

Credential
Attainment

Measurable Skills
Gain

Actual Goal

$0

$500

$1,000

$1,500

$2,000

$2,500

$3,000

$3,500

$4,000

Median Earnings

Actual Goal

Below performance



PERFORMANCE DASHBOARD PY 2019-20 2ND QUARTER

FEBRUARY 2020 OCTOBER 1, 2019 - DECEMBER 31, 2019

Service Provider/Contractor Boys & Girls Clubs

Program/Grant Term 07/01/19-06/30/20

Amount Funded

Source: CalJOBS and Subrecipient Reports

WIOA YOUTH PROGRAM

The WIOA youth program helps youth, between the ages of 14 and 24, acquire the educational and

occupational skills, training, and support needed to achieve academic and employment success and successfully

transition into careers and productive adulthood.

$535,000

Total Enrollees Carry-In New New Enrollee Goal

Page 8

133 48 85 84

Oxnard Residents Port Hueneme Residents

128 5

WIOA Performance Outcomes

0.0%

20.0%

40.0%

60.0%

80.0%

100.0%

120.0%

Employment Rate
2nd Qtr After Exit

Employment Rate
4th Qtr After Exit

Credential
Attainment

Measurable Skills
Gain

Actual Goal

$3,350

$3,400

$3,450

$3,500

$3,550

$3,600

$3,650

$3,700

$3,750

$3,800

Median Earnings

Actual Goal

Exceeds performance



PERFORMANCE DASHBOARD PY 2019-20 2ND QUARTER

FEBRUARY 2020 OCTOBER 1, 2019 - DECEMBER 31, 2019

Service Provider/Contractor County of Ventura H.S.A.

Program/Grant Term 06/01/19-12/31/20

Amount Funded

Source: CalJOBS and Subrecipient Reports

Page 9

2 0 2 55

Homeless Justice-Involved Recently Separated Low Income

0 0 0 0

WIOA Performance Outcomes

VETERANS EMPLOYMENT-RELATED ASSISTANCE

(VEAP) PROGRAM

The goal of VEAP is to promote the use of regional industry-sector strategies as the framework to help unemployed

and underemployed veterans with significant barriers and military spouses to employment transition from military

careers to rewarding civilian employment.

$281,376

Total Enrollees Carry-In New New Enrollee Goal

0.0%

10.0%

20.0%

30.0%

40.0%

50.0%

60.0%

70.0%

Employment Rate 2nd Qtr After Exit Employment Rate 4th Qtr After Exit Credential Attainment

Actual Goal

Below performance



PERFORMANCE DASHBOARD PY 2019-20 2ND QUARTER

FEBRUARY 2020 OCTOBER 1, 2019 - DECEMBER 31, 2019

Service Provider/Contractor Goodwill

Program/Grant Term 12/06/18-12/31/20

Amount Funded

Source: CalJOBS and Subrecipient Reports

NATIONAL DISLOCATED WORKER GRANT (NDWG)

TEMPORARY JOBS

The goal of NDWG is to assist individuals and public lands affected by the Woolsey/Hill Fires. Individuals are

placed in paid temporary jobs to repair public property affected by the natural disasters.

$330,463

Total Enrollees Carry-In New Enrollee Goal

Page 10

21 6 15 17

Homeless Justice-Involved UI Exhaustee Low Income

3 5 4 3

Ages of Participants Enrolled

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

19-21 22-24 25-34 35-44 45-54 55-64

Total

Exceeds performance



PERFORMANCE DASHBOARD PY 2019-20 2ND QUARTER

FEBRUARY 2020 OCTOBER 1, 2019 - DECEMBER 31, 2019

Service Provider/Contractor Goodwill

Program/Grant Term 12/06/18-12/31/20

Amount Funded

Source: CalJOBS and Subrecipient Reports

NATIONAL DISLOCATED WORKER GRANT (NDWG)

WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT

The goal of NDWG is to assist individuals and public lands affected by the Woolsey/Hill Fires. Individuals are

provided with workforce development services to assist them in obtaining employment.

$279,545

Total Enrollees Carry-In New Enrollee Goal

Page 11

4 2 2 9

Homeless Justice-Involved Disabled Low Income

1 0 1 1

Ages of Participants Enrolled

0

0.5

1

1.5

2

2.5

19-21 22-24 25-34 35-44 45-54 55-64

Total

Below performance



 
 
 
TO: WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT BOARD OF VENTURA COUNTY 
 
FROM:  REBECCA EVANS, WDB EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR 
   
DATE:  February 27, 2020 
 
SUBJECT: INFORMATION REGARDING WDB COMMITTEE STRUCTURE  
 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
On October 24, 2019, the Workforce Development Board of Ventura County (WDBVC) conducted its annual 
Strategic Planning Session. During the meeting, the WDBVC developed four priority goals through 2022: 
 

1. Create a performance dashboard by June 2020 that tracks customers served by the AJCC and partner 
organizations so that we can track performance and facilitate continuous evaluation and improvement. 

2. Develop a regional Work Based Learning strategy that initially focuses on 3 occupational clusters by 
convening WDB regional partners to select clusters and appropriate apprenticeship models by June 
2020. 

3. Align Career Technical Education (CTE) program offerings with industry needs by convening education 
institutions (K-12, Adult Education, Colleges, Universities, Certificate programs, etc.) and industry by 
December 2020. 

4. Analyze WDBVC board governance and legal structures by creating an ad-hoc committee to review and 
implement structures that best support the accomplishment of the priorities and goals herein by April 
2020 

 
Keeping these goals in mind, the WDBVC discussed how it should be structured to achieve the goals. More 
specifically, what should the committee structure look like. As a result, WDBVC staff have been consulting with 
the seven committees to gather information and feedback. 
 
COMMITTEE DISCUSSIONS TO DATE:  
 
Programs 
The Programs Committee met on January 8, 2020. The Committee discussed how it can better align itself with 
the goals of the Strategic Plan. The Committee expressed the need to learn more about the America’s Job Center 
of California operations as well as other programs operated by the WDBVC. Further discussion is needed 
regarding the name of the committee since the scope of the committee has broadened to reviewing policy, 
performance, and evaluation.  
 
Outreach 
Next committee meeting to be scheduled. 
 
 



Membership 
The Membership Committee met on February 4, 2020. The Committee discussed the possibility of moving the 
responsibility of membership to the Executive Committee. This is due to WDBVC staff being heavily involved in 
membership administration and oversight. Moreover, the Committee stated that the recommendations will also 
go to the Executive Committee, which essentially duplicates the work that the Membership Committee is 
conducting. 
 
Clean/Green 
Discussion pending. Year-end review conducted to summarize activities of the committee. 
 
Business Services 
Next committee meeting to be scheduled. 
 
Healthcare 
Discussion pending. Year-end review conducted to summarize activities of the committee. 
 
Manufacturing 
The latest committee meeting was on February 25, 2020. On January 29th Executive Director, Rebecca Evans and 
WDB administration manager, Norman Albances spoke with WDB member Alex Rivera, the former chair of the 
manufacturing committee, to discuss the purpose, activity and goals of the committee in previous years and 
discussed ideas for a path forward. 
 
 
Once all committees have had an opportunity to review their purpose, goals and activities staff will compile 
recommendations for any changes to committee structure and bring to the board. 
 
If you have questions or need more information, contact me at (805) 477-5306 or email  
rebecca.evans@ventura.org. 



EDD|LMID|LOS ANGELES COASTAL AREA                                                             Page 1                                            CONTACT: ANDRIY.MOSKALYK@EDD.CA.GOV or (805) 568-1314 

Ventura County 

Economic Summary 2019 – 4th Edition 
 

         September Industry Sectors Ranked by Employment Size1
                                                  Unemployment Rate (%)2 

 

 

Online Job Advertisements – December 2019 Help Wanted OnLine3 

 

Top 10 Employers Top 10 Occupations Top 10 Cities 

Amgen Inc. - 1,002 
Ventura County Community College District - 160  
Memorial Health - 158  
Securitas - 154  
Allied Universal - 145  
Macy's - 132  
Saalex Solutions - 111  
HCA - The Healthcare Company – 105 
Aerovironment, Inc. - 102  
Adventist Healthcare - 97  

Retail Salespersons – 552 
First-Line Supervisors of Retail Sales Workers – 360 
Security Guards – 331 
Registered Nurses - 269  
Industrial Engineers – 225 
Customer Service Representatives – 176 
Medical Scientists, Except Epidemiologists - 156  
First-Line Supervisors of Food Preparation and Serving Workers - 151  
Software Developers, Applications - 145  
Stock Clerks, Sales Floor - 143 

Thousand Oaks – 2,754 
Ventura – 1,615 
Oxnard – 1,471 
Simi Valley – 1,130 
Camarillo – 1,049 
Port Hueneme – 502 
Moorpark – 383 
Newbury Park – 230 
Santa Paula – 158 
Fillmore – 111   

 
Sources:  1 Current Employment Statistics (December 2019), 2 Local Area Unemployment Statistics (December 2019), 3 Conference Board; Help Wanted Online (December 2019). 

800

4,700

9,300

16,600

17,900

22,100

27,000

37,700

43,200

47,800

49,500

60,500

Mining and Logging

Information

Other Services

Financial Activities

Construction

Total Farm

Manufacturing

Leisure & Hospitality

Professional & Business Services

Government

Educational & Health Services

Trade, Transportation & Utilities

3.3%

3.7%

4.5%

3.9%

3.2%
3.4%

2.5%

3.4%
3.7%

7.2%

4.9%

3.6%
3.4%

2.5%

United States California Monterey
County

Santa Cruz
County

Santa Barbara
County

Ventura
County

San Luis
Obispo
County

Nov Dec



 EDD|LMID|LOS ANGELES COASTAL AREA 

 

Page 2                                              CONTACT: ANDRIY.MOSKALYK@EDD.CA.GOV or (805) 568-1314 

   Ventura County 

Economic Summary 2019 – 4th Edition 
 

  

 
 

Sources:  1 Current Employment Statistics (1990-2018 Annual Averages). 


	6.4 WIOA Policies.pdf
	Insert from: "WDB_Policy_2019-14  Incident Reporting.pdf"
	WDB_Policy_2019-14  Incident Reporting - Attachment II.pdf
	Attachment C.pdf
	ETA INSTRUCTIONS FOR OIG 1-156 INCIDENT REPORT (IR)
	2.  Completing the Incident Report Form:
	3.  Transmitting the Completed Incident Report Form:
	See Attachment E for SAC and other OIG addresses.
	Office of Regional Management





	p1: 
	1: 
	2: 
	3: 
	4: Off
	4_1: 
	5: Off
	6: Off
	6_1: 
	6_2: 
	7: 
	8: 
	9: Off
	9_1: 
	9_2: 
	9_3: 
	10: 
	11: Off
	11_1: 
	12: Off
	12_1: 
	12_2: 
	12_3: 
	12_4: 
	13_1: 
	13_2: 
	13_3: 
	13_4: 
	13_5: 
	reset: 
	14: 
	15: 
	17: 
	18: 


